1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15

THE SUPREME COURT OF WASHINGTON STATE  
THE TEMPLE OF JUSTICE

Matthew Gordon } C.O.A. No. 77408-5-I  
                          } cause No. 16-1-04898-2 SA  
                          } Motion for Discret  
Washington State }

FILED  
COURT OF APPEALS DIV I  
STATE OF WASHINGTON  
2019 MAY -6 AM 11:23

16

Comes now, Matthew Gordon, pro se, with a  
motion for discretionary review, (RA 17.3).

19

Statutes / Constitutional laws

- 21 1) ER 404 B
- 22 2) Article I, Section 22, Wash. St. Const.
- 23 3) Amendment 6 U.S. Constitution

24

Statement of Facts

1) In open court, during Vidire, Judge Hill read  
Motion For Discretionar Review

1 to the jury the list of charges in the case they  
2 were to hear testimony and cross examination to  
3 be able to, without bias, determine guilt or in-  
4 nocence of the charged crimes by weighing the  
5 evidence, and only the evidence pertaining to  
6 the charges to be adjudicated. Judge Hill  
7 also, in the reading of the charges, "included a  
8 prior conviction for burglary, which had nothing to  
9 do with the charges at hand, ER 404 B.  
10 2) The assigned counsel, Mr. Todd, objected to  
11 the reading of the prior conviction to the jury  
12 pool during voir dire, as was proper, he did  
13 so during voir dire. At that point he asked  
14 for a mistrial, Judge Hill denied the motion  
15 because he requested to late.  
16 3) Mr. Gibson, assigned appellate counsel, said  
17 the error was ineffective counsel because of  
18 untimely objection of ER 404 B violation.  
19 4) Mr. Gibson should have seen that the  
20 error was not ineffective counsel, because  
21 Mr. Todd tried to correct the ER 404 B violation  
22 during jury selection before the trial jury was  
23 empanelled, but should have been abuse of  
24 discretion by Judge Hill for not trying to  
25 correct the mistake of entering the prior bad  
26 act into the reading of charges to the jury

Motion for Discretionary Review

1 pool and allowing jurors from the jury pool that  
2 heard the entering of the prior bad act (ER 404 B)  
3 into the record but also one potential juror  
4 stating, emotionally, that he could not be im-  
5 partial because of the prior conviction.

6

7

### Arguments

8 By informing the jury pool that Mr. Gordon  
9 had a prior bad act of burglary and a con-  
10 viction in the prior cause, it would, I believe,  
11 proper to assume that the prejudice would  
12 be presumptive and that Judge Hill could  
13 have, in the interests of justice, dismissed the  
14 jury pool and impaneled a new pool to select  
15 jurors from to try to ensure a fair trial with  
16 an impartial jury, 6<sup>th</sup> Amendment United States  
17 Constitution and Article I Section 22, Wash.  
18 St. Constitution.

19 Although it is true that the ineffective  
20 counsel was not the error that should have  
21 been presented in the appellate brief, but  
22 the error that should have been addressed in  
23 the direct appeal about the ER 404 B violation  
24 should have been abuse of discretion by  
25 Judge Hill denying the motion for mistrial  
26 because of the potential for having a biased

Motion For Discretionary Review

1 panel of jurors, I believe, abuse of dis-  
2 cretion.  
3 5) Mr. Gordon, with the help of other  
4 inmates, gained insight into the issue of the  
5 elements needed to rise to the level of first  
6 degree assault. The two element missing  
7 that were needed to rise above assault in  
8 the second degree were; 7) serious bodily  
9 harm and the reporting by witness (s) that  
10 Mr. Gordon had made any threats of bodily  
11 harm to any of the accusers, and in fact  
12 the testimony of [redacted] stated that  
13 Mr. Gordon had not verbalized any  
14 threat against himself, nor did any other  
15 witness. Despite this fact, none of the as-  
16 signed counsel, defense nor appellet, stepped  
17 forward to point these issues out to the  
18 court, nor did they object to the exceptional  
19 sentence of 15 years when, if the convicted  
20 charge had been proper should have been  
21 no more than 31 years, and if the correct  
22 charge, assault in the second degree, the  
23 sentence would have been much less time  
24 to be served. These lacks in effort by  
25 the assigned counsel are ineffective  
26 counsel issues.

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26

# Relief Requested

In the interest of justice, Mr. Gordon is asking this court for discretionary review of the decision handed down on [redacted] in response to the direct appeal of the conviction of Mr. Gordon in cause number [redacted] the court of appeals number [redacted]. Mr. Gordon is asking this court to review the complete record of cause number [redacted] and the decisions thereof. Furthermore, Mr. Gordon is asking this court to reverse and remand this case back to the superior court of Washington in King County, in the interest of justice, to revisit the issues in contention.

# Notice of Mailing

A copy of this motion is to be mailed by first class U.S. mail to the adversarial party listed below:

name  
address  
Prosecuting Atty King County  
W554 King County Court House  
516 Third Avenue  
Seattle, WA 98104

1 Request to Continue as Indigent  
2 Mr. Gordon is requesting this court to  
3 continue to grant filing as an indigent and  
4 to waive filing fees. Mr. Gordon has been  
5 indigent through all phases of the legal  
6 process and still is, nothing has change.  
7 The superior court deemed Mr. Gordon indigent  
8 and so did the court of appeals. Therefore  
9 Mr. Gordon is requesting this court to grant  
10 the same status and all rights therein.

11  
12 Oath of Appellant

13 I, Gordon, Matthew, do swear under  
14 penalty of perjury that all facts stated  
15 in this motion are true and correct to  
16 the best of my knowledge.

17  
18 Matthew Gordon  
sign

19  
20 5/1/19  
date

21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26

1. The Commission on the ...  
 2. ...  
 3. ...  
 4. ...  
 5. ...  
 6. ...  
 7. ...  
 8. ...  
 9. ...  
 10. ...

Section 2 of the ...

11. ...  
 12. ...  
 13. ...  
 14. ...  
 15. ...  
 16. ...

\_\_\_\_\_  
 \_\_\_\_\_  
 \_\_\_\_\_

2019 FEB -5 AM 10: 57

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON  
DIVISION ONE

THE STATE OF WASHINGTON,	)	No. 77408-5-I
	)	
Respondent,	)	
	)	
v.	)	UNPUBLISHED OPINION
	)	
MATTHEW LEE GORDON,	)	
	)	
Appellant.	)	FILED: February 5, 2019

SCHINDLER, J. — A jury convicted Matthew Lee Gordon of three counts of assault in the first degree, assault in the second degree, unlawful possession of a firearm in the first degree, and tampering with a witness. Gordon argues ineffective assistance of counsel deprived him of his Sixth Amendment right to a fair trial. Because Gordon cannot establish prejudice, we affirm the jury verdict.

In 2016, S.S. and Matthew Gordon were in a romantic relationship. S.S. lived with Gordon and his mother in their two-story house. Security cameras were mounted on the north and south sides of the house with a “live feed” of the driveway and exterior of the house.

S.S. and Gordon were fighting “all the time” near the “end of [the] relationship.” By June, S.S. and Gordon were no longer involved in a romantic relationship. However, S.S. continued to live with Gordon and his mother.



S.S. and J.T. started dating. On June 29, 2016, S.S. called and asked J.T. to pick her up from Gordon's house. When J.T. arrived, he saw S.S. "running down the center of the street." S.S. was "frantic . . . , really upset." S.S. told J.T., "[W]atch out, he's got a gun." J.T. looked back and saw a man "all dressed in black" in "a shooter's stance." J.T. saw "a little puff of smoke come out of the end of whatever he was holding." S.S. got in J.T.'s truck and they drove to his condominium. The next day, J.T. found a bullet hole in the tailgate of his truck. The bullet "went through my toolbox" that was in the back of the truck near the "driver's compartment."

S.S. showed her mother C.L. "marks on her arms" and told C.L. that Gordon "started threatening her with a gun" and playing "Russian roulette with her."

On July 4, S.S. told Kirkland Police Officer Pete Lawrence that on June 29, Gordon "started punching me over and over." S.S. said Gordon "put his .22 caliber handgun in my mouth" and said, " 'I'm gonna kill you.' " S.S. signed a written statement under oath. The police took photographs of her injuries. The photographs show "bruises all over [her] body" and "on [her] face," "a burn mark" on her back, and "bruising on the top of her foot," her ankle and her legs "from the knees down," her left wrist, and her elbow. S.S. had a "chip in her front right top tooth."

J.T. told the officers about the bullet hole in his truck. Corporal Kimberly Baxter inspected the truck and saw the bullet went through the tailgate and into "the toolbox in the back of the pickup." Corporal Baxter found a bullet "inside the toolbox."

On July 6, S.S.'s mother C.L. went to Gordon's house to check on S.S. C.L. said she "knew" that Gordon had been "touching my daughter, hurting her, and that he'd been threatening her." C.L. told Gordon that if he "laid a hand on" S.S., she would "kill

him." Gordon said, "[W]e'll see about that" and walked away. Gordon returned dressed in army fatigues, holding a "long rifle type of gun." Gordon shot the rifle at C.L.'s feet "five or six times."

C.L. drove to her boyfriend R.A.'s house. C.L. told R.A. what happened and "begged him to go get my daughter." R.A. went to Gordon's house "to get [S.S.] out of there." When he pulled up to the house, Gordon's friend came out. R.A. told him to tell S.S. to "pack her stuff. . . . [S]he's coming with me." S.S. left with R.A. S.S. stayed at R.A.'s house that night but left the next day. C.L. "was concerned" S.S. had returned to Gordon's house.

On July 7, R.A. and C.L. drove to Gordon's house "to see if [S.S.] was back there." R.A. parked his truck across the street and "played my music pretty loud so [Gordon would] come out." "[A]ll of a sudden," R.A. saw Gordon "run out with an assault rifle," "cock it back," and "point it at" him. The rifle had "a silencer on it." R.A. "hit the gas" and "pushed [C.L.]'s head down." R.A. "saw the flash" "from the tip of the gun." R.A. and C.L. drove to the Kirkland police station.

The police obtained a warrant to search Gordon's house. The police executed the warrant on July 8. The police found "a multitude of rifles and suppressers and ammunition" downstairs. The police seized "[m]ultiple gun parts" and "gun accessories," including "long rifles, handgun magazines," "rifle rated body armor," and "improvised explosive devices." The police found "bullet holes all over the house," including "the back side of the garage" and the "exterior of the home." The police also seized the surveillance videos.

Detective John Ishmael transferred the surveillance video footage to an external hard drive. The surveillance camera footage went “back to . . . June 29, 2016.”

On July 12, 2016, the State charged Gordon with assault in the first degree of S.S. and J.T. with a semi-automatic handgun between June 29, 2016 and July 11, 2016 in violation of RCW 9A.36.011(1)(a); domestic violence assault in the second degree of S.S. with a semi-automatic handgun between June 29, 2016 and July 11, 2016 in violation of RCW 9A.36.021(1)(c); domestic violence felony harassment of S.S. while armed with a semi-automatic handgun between June 29, 2016 and July 11, 2016 in violation of RCW 9A.46.020(1) and (2)(b); and unlawful possession of a firearm in the second degree in violation of RCW 9.41.040(2)(a)(i).

On July 13, the police arrested Gordon while he was in his Toyota Camry. Gordon told the officers that “everything was fine with him and [S.S.] and that they were going to get married.” Gordon told the police he did not have “weapons” in the Toyota Camry.

The police obtained a warrant to search the Toyota Camry. Evidence technician Tiffany Borges and Detective Tyler Davidson seized “three weapons in the back of the trunk, . . . two rifles and a handgun”; “ammunition underneath the seat”; and “bullets throughout . . . the car.”

In a recorded telephone call from the King County jail, Gordon told his mother, “The Toyota had all my guns in it.”

On August 2, 2016, the State filed an amended information also charging Gordon with assault in the first degree of C.L. with a rifle on or about July 6, 2016 in violation of

RCW 9A.36.011(1)(a) and assault in the first degree of R.A. with a rifle on or about July 7, 2016 in violation of RCW 9A.36.011(1)(a).

In January 2017, Gordon mailed a letter to his friend Alex Moseid and wrote "legal mail" on the envelope. The third page of the letter states:

Al this is for your eyes only Burn it After you Read it

this trial will go much smoother if [R.A.], [C.L.], [S.S.], [J.T.], Ken and [R.A.]'s sister [A.A.] do Not talk to any one and do Not make it to trial. even if I have to owe some one a million dollars that has a shovel and is willing to use it.

On February 13, Gordon called Moseid and asked if he "talked to [C.L.] or anybody." Gordon said, "I don't really know what . . . they're planning on doing. I mean, right now, I'm going to trial, but . . . [i]f they show up, I mean." Moseid said, "Yeah, you don't have to say nothing about that, what I understand you're saying, so . . . [.] But I can look into it for you, I mean."

On August 16, 2017, the State filed an amended information to also charge Gordon with tampering with a witness between June 29, 2016 and March 8, 2017 in violation of RCW 9A.72.120. The State amended the charges of assault in the first degree of C.L. to assault in the second degree of C.L. with a rifle on or about July 6, 2016 in violation of RCW 9A.36.021(1)(c) and unlawful possession of a firearm in the second degree to unlawful possession of a firearm in the first degree in violation of RCW 9A.41.040(1).

The court read the charges against Gordon to the jury venire, including the charge of unlawful possession of a firearm in the first degree:

That the defendant Matthew Lee Gordon in King County, Washington, between June 29, 2016 and July 13, 2016, previously having been convicted in King County, Washington of the crime of Burglary in the

Second Degree, a serious offense as defined in RCW 9.41.010, knowingly did own, have in his possession, or have in his control, a black semi-automatic handgun, a firearm as defined in RCW 9.41.010;

Contrary to RCW 9.41.040(1), and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington.

During voir dire, juror 25 said burglary in the second degree was "a rather serious offense." Defense moved for a mistrial. The court denied the motion. Juror 25 was not a member of the jury panel that heard the case.

More than 15 witnesses testified at trial, including S.S., J.T., C.L., and R.A. The court admitted into evidence the security system videotape recordings on June 29, July 6, and July 7; photographs of S.S.'s injuries; and jail telephone calls.

S.S. testified she did not want to testify and did not "come here on [her] own free will." S.S. admitted "something happened to me" on June 29. When the prosecutor asked if she was "hurt during that incident," S.S. said, "I don't know. I — I don't like — I just, I can't really do this. I don't know. I don't really want to do this." S.S. testified, "Just even, just thinking about that, an incident that I've, like, blanked out of my memory and it's like for a reason, like I just feel like I just, I, like, can't. I can't do this. I don't know how to explain it."

After viewing photographs of her injuries, S.S. testified:

I had just a lot of bruising on my body, and . . . [.] Wow. Looking at the pictures, I had a lot of bruises all over my body and a mark on my face and a mark on my back. Wow. I have a lot of marks all over my body.

S.S. admitted she was "hit in the face on my left eyebrow." S.S. said she did not know "who hit [her] in the face." S.S. looked at the photographs and said, "I got hit in my mouth, and there's a little chip on my tooth." S.S. testified she did not remember "what item chipped [her] tooth."

S.S. admitted she told Officer Pete Lawrence that Gordon “put his 22-caliber handgun in my mouth” and “[w]hen he jammed the suppresser in my mouth, it chipped my front tooth.” S.S. conceded she told Officer Lawrence that Gordon “was saying, I’m going — I’m gonna kill you, and threatening to bash my skull in.”

When [Gordon] pulled the gun on me, and put it in my mouth, after he threatened saying you’re gonna die, he had his finger on the trigger. After he pulled the barrel of the suppresser out of my mouth, he shot the gun into the ceiling of the garage.

Before cutting — putting the gun in my mouth, he was punching and kicking me. He hit, struck me with a large, round candle. Then he seemed to feel that did nothing. So he started punching me over and over. I was curled into a ball on the ground and he was hitting me.

S.S. also told Officer Lawrence that Gordon “struck me in the face on my right eye. He had a ring on and it made a mark. I’ve lost count of how many times he has physically abused me. Multiple times.” S.S. also said, “Multiple times he’s pointed a gun at me. The last few months he’s becoming more violent at me.” S.S. told Officer Lawrence, “I’m terrified of [Gordon]. I’m scared that he is going to kill me if he finds out I’ve talked to the police.”

J.T. identified Gordon as the person who shot at his truck on July 7. J.T. testified the man was “about 30 feet” away and he was “able to actually see the person who shot at” him.

C.L. testified that when Gordon fired the rifle at her feet on July 6, “I was scared. I thought I was dead for a second.” C.L. said she “saw [Gordon] shoot the gun” at R.A.’s truck the next day on July 7.

The State played the surveillance camera videos for the jury. The June 29 video shows S.S. in the driveway “light up a cigarette and pass it to somebody who’s just off of camera.” The video shows the cigarette is “thrown” at “her face” and S.S. walking

down the driveway toward the street, "holding her head." Approximately a minute later, the video shows Gordon at the back deck of his house with "what appears to be a semiautomatic pistol with a suppressor attached to it in his left hand." As Gordon walks along the south side of the house toward the street, the video shows the "headlights of [J.T.] driving past the house" in his truck. As J.T. drives by, Gordon raises his pistol and starts to run, "chasing after the pickup truck."

The July 6 video shows the "confrontation between [C.L.] and [Gordon] on the front lawn." Gordon is "wearing full army fatigues and army hat." C.L. "appears to be yelling at him."

The July 7 video shows R.A.'s "very distinct pickup truck" driving "southbound past the house." The truck "comes back . . . 20, 30 seconds later and then parks across the street." C.L. is in the passenger seat. They wait "about 40 seconds" and "never exit the vehicle." Gordon runs "to the street" and "fires at least three rounds at the vehicle as it speeds away."

On the third day of trial, Gordon stipulated "for the purpose of the unlawful possession of a firearm charge" that he had been convicted of a prior serious offense. The court read the stipulation to the jury:

The parties stipulate that on or about March 20, 2008, the defendant, Matthew Lee Gordon, was convicted of a serious offense in 08-1-07721-3 SEA and was properly notified orally and in writing that he was not to possess, own, or have in his control a firearm.

The jury found Gordon guilty of domestic violence assault in the first degree of S.S. while armed with a firearm, domestic violence assault in the second degree of S.S. while armed with a firearm, assault in the first degree of J.T. while armed with a firearm, assault in the first degree of R.A. while armed with a firearm, unlawful possession of a

firearm in the first degree, and tampering with a witness. The jury found Gordon not guilty of assault in the second degree of C.L.

Gordon seeks reversal, claiming his attorney provided ineffective assistance of counsel by not seeking to exclude any reference to his prior burglary conviction and not entering into the stipulation before voir dire.

The Sixth Amendment to the United States Constitution and article I, section 22 of the Washington Constitution guarantee the right to effective assistance of counsel. Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 685-86, 104 S. Ct. 2052, 80 L. Ed. 2d 674 (1984); State v. Grier, 171 Wn.2d 17, 32, 246 P.3d 1260 (2011). We review claims of ineffective assistance of counsel de novo. State v. Sutherby, 165 Wn.2d 870, 883, 204 P.3d 916 (2009).

To establish a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel, Gordon must show (1) deficient performance that fell below an objective standard of reasonableness and (2) but for counsel's errors, there is a reasonable probability that the result of the trial would have been different. Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687. If either prong of the test is not satisfied, our inquiry ends. State v. Hendrickson, 129 Wn.2d 61, 78, 917 P.2d 563 (1996).

After the court read the charging information to the jury venire, juror 25 "mentioned Mr. Gordon's prior conviction for burglary in the second degree, indicating that it was a . . . rather serious offense."

Defense moved for a mistrial. Defense counsel stated he did not object when the court read the information to the jury because he "didn't want to call . . . undue attention



to that particular charge or . . . to the unlawful possession of a firearm charge.” Defense counsel told the court:

Although it wasn't the subject of a pre-trial motion, it's — it was my intention and my practice in this particular charge to stipulate to the defendant previously — having previously been convicted of a serious offense, which, as we know, keeps out the name of the crime and keeps out, you know, any of the details, keeps out the judgment and sentence and that kind of thing.

The court denied the motion for a mistrial. The court ruled:

Unfortunately, [defense counsel], had you — had you brought that up in advance, the court certainly would have considered it, but given that you didn't, I read the charges as they were written, and I'm not going to grant a mistrial on that basis.

Even if the failure to stipulate to a prior serious offense before voir dire constitutes deficient performance, Gordon cannot establish prejudice; that but for the failure to enter into a stipulation before jury voir dire, the result of his trial would have been different. The evidence of guilt was overwhelming and the court instructed the jury that it could not consider the prior conviction “for any purpose.” Jury instruction 8 states:

As to Counts 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 7 you may not consider evidence that the defendant has been convicted of a crime for any purpose.

As to Count 6 [unlawful possession of a firearm in the first degree] you may consider evidence that the defendant has been convicted of a crime in deciding whether the State has proven each element of that crime and for no other purpose.