FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
5/29/2019 1:48 PM
BY SUSAN L. CARLSON
CLERK

SUPREME COURT NO. 97186-2 COURT OF APPEALS NO. 77408-5-I

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

STATE OF WASHINGTON,

Respondent,

v.

MATTHEW GORDON,

Appellant.

APPEAL FROM THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON FOR KING COUNTY

ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

DANIEL T. SATTERBERG King County Prosecuting Attorney

GAVRIEL JACOBS
Deputy Prosecuting Attorney
Attorneys for Respondent

King County Prosecuting Attorney W554 King County Courthouse 516 3rd Avenue Seattle, Washington 98104 (206) 477-9497

D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The State charged Matthew Gordon with three counts of assault in the first degree while armed with a firearm, two counts of assault in the second degree while armed with a firearm, one count of unlawful possession of a firearm in the first degree, and one count of tampering with a witness. CP 20-22. The jury acquitted Gordon of one count of assault in the second degree, but convicted on all other charges. CP 105-14. The court sentenced Gordon within the standard range. CP 187-92.

Gordon timely appealed, arguing that this attorney was ineffective for failing to stipulate to his predicate conviction for unlawful firearm possession in advance of *voir dire*, thus leading the trial court to inform the jury of the prior offense when it read the charging document to the *venire* verbatim. Gordon did not file any statement of additional grounds.

The Court of Appeals affirmed, holding that Gordon could not establish prejudice primarily because the evidence of his guilt was overwhelming. No. 77408-5 at 10.

E. <u>LEGAL ARGUMENT</u>

1. THE OUTCOME OF GORDON'S APPEAL WOULD NOT HAVE CHANGED HAD APPELLATE COUNSEL ARGUED THAT THE TRIAL COURT SHOULD HAVE GRANTED A MISTRIAL.

Gordon argues that his appellate counsel erred by framing the issue as ineffective assistance of counsel before the Court of Appeals. Rather, Gordon believes that counsel should have argued that the trial court abused its discretion by denying trial counsel's motion for a mistrial after the jury became aware of his prior conviction. <u>PRV</u> at 2-3.

While Gordon has proffered a new theory related to his original assignment of error, he has not alleged that the Court of Appeals was mistaken in its conclusion that overwhelming evidence supported his

conviction. The denial of a mistrial warrants reversal only when there is a substantial likelihood that the alleged prejudice affected the jury's verdict State v. Russell, 125 Wn.2d 24, 85, 882 P.2d 747 (1994). Such prejudice does not exist if there was overwhelming evidence of guilt. See State v. McMurray, 40 Wn. App. 872, 876, 700 P.2d 1203 (1985). Accordingly, it did not really matter which theory was pursued on appeal, as the outcome would have been the same.

2. THIS COURT SHOULD NOT CONSIDER ANY ISSUE THAT GORDON RAISES FOR THE FIRST TIME IN HIS PETITION.

Gordon also now appears to add a sufficiency challenge, arguing that insufficient evidence supported his conviction for first degree assault.

PRV at 4. He also suggests his counsel was ineffective for not recognizing this purported issue.

This Court generally does not review issues that were not raised or briefed before the Court of Appeals. State v. Halstein, 122 Wn.2d 109, 130, 857 P.2d 270 (1993). Because Gordon declined to bring his sufficiency of the evidence claim before the Court of Appeals, this Court should deny to consider it on discretionary review.

F. <u>CONCLUSION</u>

The State respectfully requests this Court deny Gordon's petition for review.

DATED this 29 day of May, 2019.

Respectfully submitted,

DANIEL T. SATTERBERG King County Prosecuting Attorney

By:

GAVRIEL JACOBS, WSBA #46394

Deputy Prosecuting Attorney Attorneys for Respondent Office WSBA #91002

KING COUNTY PROSECUTOR'S OFFICE - APPELLATE UNIT

May 29, 2019 - 1:48 PM

Transmittal Information

Filed with Court: Supreme Court

Appellate Court Case Number: 97186-2

Appellate Court Case Title: State of Washington v. Matthew Lee Gordon

Superior Court Case Number: 16-1-04898-2

The following documents have been uploaded:

971862_Answer_Reply_20190529134749SC774865_8373.pdf

This File Contains:

Answer/Reply - Answer to Petition for Review

The Original File Name was 97186-2 STATES ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW.pdf

Comments:

Sender Name: Bora Ly - Email: bora.ly@kingcounty.gov

Filing on Behalf of: Gavriel Gershon Jacobs - Email: gavriel.jacobs@kingcounty.gov (Alternate Email:)

Address:

King County Prosecutor's Office - Appellate Unit W554 King County Courthouse, 516 Third Avenue

Seattle, WA, 98104 Phone: (206) 477-9499

Note: The Filing Id is 20190529134749SC774865